

ECx-Display and ECB & ECL 50 Series Controllers

User Guide

Connecting People with Intelligent Building Solutions

Document Revision History

- 1. Version 0.1 Preliminary release January 2013
- 2. Version 1.0 March 2013
- 3. Version 1.1 November 2013
- 4. Version 1.2 April 2016
- □ Added information for the ECx-Display
- Updated User Interface Access Rights
- 5. Version 1.3 Add Favorites limit note and layout and formatting updates May 2023

Copyright

©, Distech Controls Inc., 2023. All rights reserved.

While all efforts have been made to verify the accuracy of information in this manual, Distech Controls is not responsible for damages or claims arising from the use of this manual. Persons using this manual are assumed to be trained HVAC professionals and are responsible for using the correct wiring procedures, correct override methods for equipment control and maintaining safe working conditions in fail-safe environments. Distech Controls reserves the right to change, delete or add to the information in this manual at any time without notice.

Distech Controls, the Distech Controls logo, Allure, and Allure UNITOUCH are registered trademarks of Distech Controls, Inc. BACnet is a registered trademark of ASHRAE. The *Bluetooth*[®] word mark and logos are registered trademarks owned by Bluetooth SIG, Inc. and any use of such marks is under license. All other trademarks are property of their respective owners.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1

ntroduction	5
About This User Guide	5
Purpose of the User Guide	5
Intended Audience	5
Introduction to the Operator Interface	5
ECB & ECL 50 Series Controllers	5
ECx-Display	5
Overview	6
Acronyms and Abbreviations Used in this Document	7

CHAPTER 2

Interface Description	8
Main Screen	8
Feature Availability	8
Main Screen Menu Description	8
Menu Tree	. 10
Navigation	. 13
Using the Jog Dial	. 13
Operator Interface	14
Selecting an Action	14
Selecting and Editing a Numeric Value	15
Selecting a State Value	18
Interpreting Row Colors and Alarm Icons	18
Unlocking a Password-Protected Interface	18

CHAPTER 3

Mer	nu Description	22
	Points Menu	22
	Points Detail Screen	22
	Overriding Points and Options	23
	Viewing Point Alarm Details (LonWorks models)	24
	Viewing Point Alarm Details (BACnet models)	25
	Schedules and Calendars Menu	26
	Using Schedules and Calendars	26
	Schedule and Calendars Main Screen Overview	27
	Saving Changes to Calendars and Schedules	28
	Schedule Hierarchy	28
	Schedules and Calendars Menu Tree	28
	Viewing a Weekly Schedule	31
	Modifying or Deleting a Weekly Schedule Event	33
	Creating a Weekly Schedule Event or Setting a Schedule's Default Value	34
	Resolving Event Errors	36
	Overriding a Schedule (BACnet models only)	36
	Reverting a Schedule's Operation to Automatic (BACnet models only)	36

Viewing a Special Event 2 Modifying a Special Event's Properties. 2 Modifying or Deleting a Time-of-Day Event 2 Creating a Special Event's Time-of-Day Event or Setting a Schedule's Default Value 2 Adding a Special Event. 2 Viewing Calendar Events 2 Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties. 2 Adding a Calendar Event 2	37 38 41 43 45 46 47 49
Alarm Menu (LonWorks) Reliability Property	51 51
Alarm Menu (BACnet) Viewing the Alarm Details Screen Acknowledging an Unacknowledged Alarm	52 54 54 55
Overrides Menu Modifying an Overridden Point or Removing an Override	56 57
Favorites Menu	57
PID Loops Menu Tuning a PID Loop	59 62
Weather Menu	64
Settings Menu	65
About Menu	66

CHAPTER 1

Introduction

In this chapter, the ECx-Display and ECB & ECL 50 Series Controllers are introduced with their main functions and characteristics.

I		E	
I	_	_	٦
I	=	=	I
L	-	_	

Unless otherwise specified, the ECx-Display and ECB & ECL 50 Series Controllers will collectively be referred to in this guide as the **Operator Interface**.

About This User Guide

Purpose of the User Guide

This user guide is intended to provide information to show you how to use and operate a Distech Controls' ECx-Display, or ECB & ECL 50 Series Controllers equipped with a display.

Intended Audience

This user guide is intended to be used by control system technicians, system building managers, and building owners.

Introduction to the Operator Interface

ECB & ECL 50 Series Controllers

A Distech Controls' ECB & ECL 50 Series Controller is equipped with a color operator interface and is available with the following models:

Controller Series	LonWorks	BACnet (BACnet Profile)
203 Series	ECL-253	ECB-253 (B-ASC)
300 Series	ECL-350	ECB-350 (B-AAC)
400 Series	ECL-450	ECB-450 (B-AAC)
400 Selles	ECL-453	ECB-453 (B-AAC)
600 Series	ECL-650	ECB-650 (B-AAC)

ECx-Display

The ECx-Display is a color operator interface that can be panel-mounted, DIN-rail mounted, or used as a temporary hand-held, portable device. It is compatible with the following Distech Controls controller models:

Controller	ECB/ECL-203	ECB/ECL-300	ECB/ECL-400	ECB/ECL-600	Eclypse™ Connected
Series					Controllers
ECx-Display					

Overview

Once some code has been created in EC-*gfx*Program and then synchronized with the controller, various objects (points, schedules, PID loops, and so on) used in the code become visible through this operator interface. Object values can be viewed and, in many cases, modified or overridden.

Configuration of this operator interface is done in EC-*gfx*Program in the LCD Screen block when the controller is programmed. The following items can be configured:

- $\hfill\square$ The title of the main screen can be set.
- □ The **About** menu content can be configured.
- □ The passwords can be set for multiple users according to their role.
- □ The operator interface languages can be set.

Refer the <u>EC-gfxProgram User Guide</u> for more information.



Figure 1: (Left) Front Panel of a Typical ECB & ECL 50 Series Controller, (Right) Front Panel of an ECx-Display

The display offers many features such as:

- □ Large color display to clearly show information.
- □ Bright display makes information easily viewable in dark environments such as a mechanical room.
- □ Information is color-coded so that an object's status can be recognized at a glance (for example In Alarm or In Override).
- □ Real-time access to monitored values, setpoints, and status of controlled equipment.
- □ View and modify calendar and schedules. Changes are synchronized with an EC-BOS_{AX} when connected to the controller's network.
- □ Alarm management and acknowledgement (when supported).
- □ View current weather conditions.
- □ Multi-user access management.

Acronyms and Abbreviations Used in this Document

AI	Analog Input	
AO	Analog Output	
AV	Analog Value	
B-AAC	BACnet Advanced Application Controller	
B-ASC	BACnet Application Specific Controller	
BC	Boolean Constant	
BI	Binary Input / Boolean Input (BACnet / LONWORKS)	
BO	Binary Output / Boolean Output (BACnet / LONWORKS)	
BV	Binary Value / Boolean Value (BACnet / LONWORKS)	
CAL	Calendars	
COM	ComSensor Inputs	
EC	Enumeration Constant	
EV	Enumeration Variable	
DIP	Dual Inline Package	
DST	Daylight Savings Time	
HVAC	Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning	
HWI	Hardware Input	
HWO	Hardware Output	
ID	Identity	
LCD	Liquid Crystal Display	
MAC	Media Access Control	
MSI	Multi State Input	
MS/TP	Master-Slave/Token-Passing	
MSV	Multi State Value	
NC	Numeric Constant	
NV	Numeric Value	
NVI	Network Variable Input	
NVO	Network Variable Output	
PID	Proportional Integral Derivative Control	
SCH	Schedules	
WLI	Wireless Inputs	

CHAPTER 2 Interface Description

This chapter presents the operator interface.

Main Screen

Feature Availability

Some icons shown below may not be available, or they may be greyed-out and inaccessible on your controller's LCD screen due to the following reasons:

- □ Not all controllers support all features shown here.
- □ The **LCD Screen** block was not previously programmed or configured in EC-*gfx*Program. For example, schedules or favorites.
- □ The weather feature has not been previously configured with EC-NetAX, or the weather information is not available.
- □ No alarms have been previously configured in the controller's code for one or more points.
- □ No PID loops have been used in the controller's code.
- □ At present, there is no content available to be shown in the menu. For example, this may occur when:
 - No points are currently overridden.
 - No points are currently in alarm.

We recommend that the controller be programmed with EC-gfxProgram prior to using the menus.

Main Screen Menu Description

This section shows the main screen and its components. If the access to the interface requires a password, see *Unlocking a Password-Protected Interface*.



Figure 2: Main Screen Overview



When the controller's *Jog Dial* has not been touched for 5 minutes, the display appears blank due to the display's backlight turning off. Restore the display operation by rotating the *Jog Dial*. To learn more about how to use the *Jog Dial*, see *Using the Jog Dial*.

	Item	Description
1	Company Name	A user-defined company name. This is set in EC- <i>gfx</i> Program, in the LCD Screen block, when the controller is programmed.
\bigcirc	Date	The current controller date.
(2)	Time	The current controller time.
		Format: 12 hour / 24 hour.
3		The Points menu is used to display inputs, setpoints, values, outputs values, and so on. See <i>Points Menu</i> .
3		The Schedules and Calendars menu is used to view and modify the schedules and calendars. See <i>Schedules and Calendars Menu</i> .
3		This menu is only available on controller models that support alarms. The Alarms menu shows the active alarms. The alarms can be acknowledged if the controller supports this functionality. See <i>Alarm Menu</i> (<i>LowWorks</i>) or <i>Alarm Menu</i> (<i>BACnet</i>). The alarm icon will be blue when no alarms are active. The alarm icon will be red when an alarm is active.
3	ő S	The Manual Overrides menu allows a user to remove an override, or change the override value of any hardware input, hardware output, value, variable, and so on. See <i>Overrides Menu</i> . The override icon will be purple when there are one or more active overrides in the controller.
3		The Favorites menu allows the user to view favorite screens that have been bookmarked. See <i>Favorites Menu</i> .
3	· ^ ·	The PID Loops menu allows the user to tune the controller's PIDs. See <i>PID Loops Menu</i> .
3		The Weather menu allows the user to view the current weather conditions. See <i>Weather Menu</i> .

	Item	Description
3		The Settings menu allows the user to view and configure the controller's settings. See <i>Settings Menu</i> .
3	1	The About menu can be customized to show a graphic (for example, a company logo) and textual information (for example, contact information about the integrator). This menu also allows the user to view the controller and operator interface software/bootloader versions. See <i>About Menu</i> .
4	Current selection	When on the main screen, this shows the menu option currently selected by rotating the <i>Jog Dial</i> . See <i>Using the Jog Dial</i> .
5	Interface is Locked	This locks the interface from unauthorized use. To learn how to unlock the interface, see <i>Unlocking a Password-Protected Interface</i> .

Menu Tree

A typical menu tree for a BACnet Controller (ECB and ECY Series) is shown below.



Figure 3: Typical Menu Tree for a BACnet Controller (ECB or ECY Series)

1. Not available with the ECB B-ASC models (see Introduction to the Operator Interface).

2. Not available with ECLYPSE Connected Controllers.



Figure 4: Typical Menu Tree for a LONWORKS Controller

Navigation

Navigating throughout the operator interface is easy by using the *Jog Dial* and the **EXIT** button:

- □ By turning the *Jog Dial*, you can highlight screen icons, context menu options, or change a parameter's value.
- □ By pressing the *Jog Dial*, you can select the current icon to enter a menu, select a context menu option, or to enter the current parameter's value.
- □ By pressing the **EXIT** button, you can navigate back to the previous menu or item while cancelling any changes that have been made.



Figure 5: (Left) Typical Interface of an ECB & ECL 50 Series Controller. (Right) Interface of an ECx-Display

	Item	Description
1	Jog Dial	The <i>Jog Dial</i> is operated by turning it so as to select (or highlight) one of the available options, and then by pressing it in order to activate the currently selected option. See <i>Using the Jog Dial</i> .
2	EXIT button	Use this button to cancel the current action or menu and to go back to the previous menu.

Using the Jog Dial

The Jog Dial is operated as follows:

□ By turning or rotating it between your thumb and forefinger to select (or highlight) a menu item or set a value shown on the display.



Figure 6: Rotate the Jog Dial to Select a Menu Item or Set a Value

□ Press the *Jog Dial* to activate or accept the currently selected menu item or value shown on the display.



Figure 7: Press the Jog Dial to Activate or Accept the Currently Selected Menu Item or Value

Use the **EXIT** button to cancel the current action or menu and to go back to the previous menu.



Figure 8: Press the EXIT Button to Cancel the Current Action or Menu and Go Back

Operator Interface

The operator interface has common features throughout, e.g. the use of the jog dial and of the EXIT button to navigate through the interface and to select and edit values. The following sections will show you how to select items, edit values, interpret the different menu colors and icons you will come across while working with the operator interface, and unlocking the password protected interface.

Selecting an Action

An action allows you to perform a specific action on a selected menu item. A list of actions is available within each list of context menu items. The available actions will change according to the type of menu you selected. Select an action as follows:

1. Rotate the Jog Dial to highlight a menu item.

2. Press the *Jog Dial* to activate a list of the currently available actions (context menu). In the example below, the available actions are **Override**, **Auto**, and **Alarm Details**.

Figure 9: Activating a Context Menu for a List of Actions

3. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to highlight one of the available actions and press the *Jog Dial* to perform the action.

Selecting and Editing a Numeric Value

When a value has been selected, the interface provides two ways of editing it.

- □ By scrolling to a value. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to increase or decrease the current value. This is ideal for relatively small value changes. See *Scrolling to a Numeric Value*.
- □ By editing the value. Use the *Jog Dial* to 'build' the number, one digit at a time, including decimal places, negative signs, and exponents. This is ideal to make large changes to the current value or to create values with exponents. See *Editing a Numeric Value*.

DST offset	
60	
Scroll Edit	OK Cancel



Button	Description
Scroll	Edit the value by rotating the <i>Jog Dial</i> to increase or decrease the current value. See <i>Scrolling to a Numeric Value</i> .
Edit	Edit the value by using the <i>Jog Dial</i> to 'build' the number, one digit at a time. See <i>Editing a Numeric Value</i> .
ок	Accepts the currently shown value (once the value has been edited by using a <i>Scroll</i> or <i>Edit</i> operation) and closes the popup window.
Cancel	Cancels the current action (rejects any change made to the value) and closes the popup window. This maintains the previous value.

Scrolling to a Numeric Value

When scrolling, the default step size adjusts according to the magnitude of the value being edited as follows: the step size is the closest base 10 unit to 1% of the current value (for example, 1% of 1200 is 12, so the closest base 10 unit is 10; 1% of 22 is 0.22, so the closest base 10 unit is 0.1). However, the step size can be adjusted so that you can scroll faster to a value. See *How to Set the Scroll Step Size* below.

How to Scroll

Scroll a value as follows:

- 1. Rotate the Jog Dial to select the numeric menu item.
- 2. Press the Jog Dial to open the edit screen.
- 3. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to select **Scroll**.
- 4. Press the *Jog Dial*. Rotate the *Jog Dial* clockwise to increase the value. Rotate the *Jog Dial* counterclockwise to decrease the value. The *Jog Dial* step size can be set so you can advance by steps of 1, 10, or 100 to quickly advance to the correct value. See *How to Set the Scroll Step Size* below.
- 5. Once you have adjusted the number to the correct value, press the *Jog Dial* to accept the value.
- 6. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to select **OK**.
- 7. Press the Jog Dial to exit the value editing screen.

How to Set the Scroll Step Size

When scrolling to a value (see above), the scroll step size can be set so you can advance by steps of 0.001, 0.01, 0.1, 1, 10, 100, or 1000 when turning the *Jog Dial* to quickly advance to the correct value. Set the *Jog Dial* step size as follows:

1. Press and rotate the *Jog Dial* at the same time to select 0.001, 0.01, 0.1, 1, 10, 100, or 1000 to advance in steps of 0.001, 0.01, 0.1, 1, 10, 100, or 1000.



Figure 11: Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size

2. Once a step value has been selected, release the Jog Dial.

DST offset		
10		
Scroll Edit	ОК	Cancel

Figure 12: Setting the Scroll Step Size to 10

3. Now rotate the Jog Dial to scroll to a value.



Each time you enter a value edit popup, the step size resets to the default value, according to the magnitude of the value being edited.

Editing a Numeric Value

A value can be constructed, one digit at a time. Negative numbers and exponents can be created. Edit a value as follows:

- 1. Rotate the Jog Dial to select the numeric menu item.
- 2. Press the Jog Dial to open the edit screen.
- 3. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to select **Edit**.
- 4. Press the Jog Dial.
- 5. Edit the value, one digit at a time. According to the cursor's position, rotating the *Jog Dial* allows you to select different components to construct a number.
- Negative sign (-); available when the cursor is in the left most position or after the exponent 'E' symbol.
- □ Clear any digits to the right of the current cursor position.
- □ Exponent (E). The number that follows this symbol is the base 10 exponent. For example, 6.4E03 is 6400 in decimal.

- Digits, 0 to 9.
- □ Decimal place (.).

When a number is shown, the cursor can be positioned among the digits by pressing and rotating the *Jog Dial* at the same time. See figure *Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size*.

- 6. Press the Jog Dial to accept the current digit and to move to the next digit.
- 7. Once you have adjusted the number to the correct value (you have no more digits to create), press the *Jog Dial* a second time to accept the value.
- 8. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to select **OK**.
- 9. Press the Jog Dial to exit the value editing screen.

Selecting a State Value

A state value is used to set the status for a selected item. The available state values will change according to the type of menu item you have selected. Select a state value as follows:

- 1. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to highlight a menu item.
- 2. Press the *Jog Dial* to activate a list of the currently available values. In this example, the state value options are English and French:

Settings		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM	
Brightness		50%	
Language		English	
Logout Time	English	3 min	
Device Instance	French	821006	
MAC Address	L	6	
Max Master		27	
Baud Rate		Auto	
Date		Thursday, Oct 18, 2012	
Time		2:47:27PM	

Figure 13: Activating a Selection Wheel for a List of State Values

3. Rotate the *Jog Dial* to highlight one of the available values and press the *Jog Dial* to select the state value.

Interpreting Row Colors and Alarm Icons

The color of a row can change according to its current state. When an alarm has been configured, an alarm icon is shown. This is described below.

E Hardware Inputs		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM		3 /I				
Al1	Supply Air 1	emperature	•		45.9	5 °F		
AI2	Supply Air H	umidity			26.3	0 %RH		
AI3	Return Air Te	mperature	Over	ride	78.4	2 °F		
Al4	Return Air H	umidity	Auto		52.6	4 %RH	۱	8
AI5	Return Air C	D2	Alarn	۱ Details	865.	42 PPM		
Al6	Duct Static F	ressure			1.16	24 in/wc)	•
BI1	Supply Fan \$	≩tatus			Rui	ning		
BI2	Return Fan S	tatus			Rui	ning		
BI3	Filter Status				Clea	in		
							ſ	8
⁻ his po overrid	int is The c den item se with th D	urrent elected c ne <i>Jog</i> it <i>ial</i> wit	The c contex tem se	urrent t menu elected <i>Jog Dial</i>	This p currei Alarm unackno	oint is ntly in and is wledged	An Alar been cor for this	m has nfigure point

Figure 14: Row Color Interpretation

Row Color	Description
Light blue and white	This default banding is a visual aid to help you read tabular data with greater ease.
Navy blue	The row or item selected by rotating the Jog Dial.
Red	The point has an active alarm that is unacknowledged. See <i>Alarm Menu (LowWorks)</i> or <i>Alarm Menu (BACnet)</i> .
Violet	The point is overridden. See Overrides Menu.

Unlocking a Password-Protected Interface

The operator interface can be password-protected by setting a password in EC-*gfx*Program, on the **LCD Screen** block. This section will explain the different user access rights and how to unlock a password protected interface.

User Interface Access Rights

In EC-*gfx*Program, up to four passwords can be configured for the four different user access levels: Administrator, Manager, Operator, and Guest. When password protection is set, your privileges to use the interface or certain menus in the interface will depend on the access level. For example, you may be able to override a value depending on the point type and your access level. For information on how to configure the operator interface passwords, refer to the <u>EC-*gfx*Program User Guide</u>.

Menu Items	Access Level			
	Administrator	Manager	Operator	Guest
Points (Points, Overrides)	RW	RW	N/A	N/A
Favorites List	RW	RW	Configurable with	n EC- <i>gfx</i> Program ¹
Schedule	RW	RW	RW	N/A
Alarms (when available)	RW	RW	N/A	N/A
PID Parameters	RW	R	N/A	N/A
Trends	R	R	R	N/A
Time / Date	RW	RW	RW	R
Daylight Saving Time	RW	RW	RW	R
Language	RW	RW	RW	R
Device Commissioning: MAC Address, Baud Rate, etc. (BACnet models only)	RW	R	R	R

Where: R = Read, W = Write, edit, override, or acknowledge, N/A = No Access

In EC-gfxProgram, groups can be created in the favorites list. Points that are added to these groups can be shared with Operator and Guest access.

How to Unlock the Operator Interface

1. When the interface is locked, press the *Jog Dial* to open the password menu. The **Enter password** window opens.



Figure 15: Unlocking a Password-Protected Interface

- 2. Rotate and press the *Jog Dial* to enter your password (see figures *Rotate the Jog Dial to Select a Menu Item or Set a Value* and *Press the Jog Dial to Activate or Accept the Currently Selected Menu Item or Value*), one alphanumeric character at a time to select different components to construct your password.
- \Box Letters, A to Z.
- Digits, 0 to 9.

The cursor can be moved to the left by pressing and rotating the *Jog Dial* at the same time to clear any previously entered alphanumeric characters. See figure *Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size*.

- 3. Press the *Jog Dial* to accept the current alphanumeric character and to move to the next alphanumeric character of your password.
- 4. Once you have entered your password (you have no more alphanumeric characters to add), press the *Jog Dial* a second time to accept your password and unlock the interface. The main menu is now available.



Figure 16: Unlocked Interface

5. Rotate the Jog Dial to select a menu item and press the Jog Dial to enter the selected menu.



The interface returns to the lock mode by default after 5 minutes of inactivity. This auto log-off delay is configurable in **Logout Time** in the *Settings Menu*.

CHAPTER 3 Menu Description

This chapter describes the Operator Interface menus.

Points Menu



The **Points** menu is used to display, set, and override inputs, outputs, setpoints, and values. It is also used to view alarm details for points that are in alarm.

This menu may be greyed-out (is inaccessible) on your controller's LCD screen. See *Feature Availabil-ity*.

E Points	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Hardware Inputs	
Hardware Outputs	
Analog Values	
Binary Values	
Multi-State Values	
Com Inputs	
Wireless Inputs	

Figure 17: Typical Points Menu

The following points are available in the **Points** menu screen.

Points Detail Screen

When selecting a point from the **Points** menu, the following type of screen is displayed. This screen displays the point identifier, point name, point values, and color-coded rows and icons to identify points in alarm or overridden.

See Interpreting Row Colors and Alarm Icons for how to interpret the color code used in the interface.

E Hardware Outputs		Thursday, Oct 2 2:4	18, 2013 7:27PM
AO1 Damper	Position Room1	22.9 %	۵
AO2 Damper I	Position Room2	79.6 %	=
AO3 Damper	Position Room3	78.4 %	
AO4 Damper	Position Room4	52.6 %	
AO5 Makeup	Air Damper Position	17.3 %	چ
AO6 Fan Varia	able Speed	64.5 %	
BO1 CW Valv	e	ON	
BO2 HW Valv	e l	OFF	
BO3 Fan Enal	ble	OŅ	
Point I	Name		
Point lentifier	Point is Po Overridden	bint is in Value Alarm	ا Alarm is Configure (BACnet oi

Figure 18: Typical points screen

The point identifier column shows the configuration type. The number corresponds to the EC-*gfx*Program's block number set in the **Properties** pane. The configuration type of the inputs, outputs, values, constants or variables is configured with EC *gfx*Program.

The following objects are available according to the controller's network type:

LonWorks Controllers		BACnet	BACnet Controllers		
Inputs/Outputs:		Inputs/Ou	Inputs/Outputs:		
HWI	Hardware Input	AI	Analog Hardware Input		
HWO	Hardware Output	BI	Binary Hardware Input		
COM	ComSensor Input	AO	Analog Hardware Output		
WRI	Wireless Sensor Input	BO	Binary Hardware Output		
NVI	Network Variable Input	MSI	Multi-State Input		
NVO	Network Variable Output (read only)	AI	Analog Hardware Input		
Constants:		Values:	Values:		
NC	Numeric Constant	AV	Analog Value		
BC	Boolean Constant	BV	Binary Value		
EC	Enumeration Constant	MSV	Multi-State Value		
SC	Setpoint Constant				
Values:					
NV Numeric Value					
BV	Boolean Value				
EV	Enumeration Value				

Overriding Points and Options

Points can be overridden by selecting the point and pressing the *Jog Dial* to view the available options. The following override actions may be available according to the type of point selected. To select an action, see *Selecting an Action*.

Override	LONWORKS Con-	BACnet Con-	Description
	trollers	trollers	
Emergency override			Forces a point to assume a user-set value at priority level 1.
Emergency auto			Clears an Emergency Override value at priority level 1.
Override		-	Forces the point to assume a user-set value as its present value (at priority level 8 for BACnet controllers).
Auto			Clears an Override value.
Set value			Forces a point to assume a user-set value.
Alarm details			Shows any currently associated alarms.

Viewing Point Alarm Details (LONWORKS models)

For LONWORKS controllers only, you can view the alarm details for the associated inputs and outputs in the **Points** menu. Select the point that is in alarm (highlighted in red) and select **Alarm Details**. See *Interpreting Row Colors and Alarm Icons*.

E Hardware Inputs		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
HWI1 Supply Air Temperature	9	45.95 °F
HWI2 Supply Air Humidity		26.30 %RH
HWI3 Return Air Temperature	Override	78.42 °F
HWI4 Return Air Humidity	Auto	52.64 %RH
HWI5 Return Air CO2	Alarm Details	865.42 PPM
HWI6 Duct Static Pressure		1.1624 in/wc
HWI1 Supply Fan Status		Running
HWI2 Return Fan Status		Running
		<u>п</u>

Figure 19: Alarm Details (for LonWorks Controller)

The alarms details screen for the associated item in alarm is displayed:

E Hardware	Inputs Thui	rsday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
HWI1 Supply Air Tempe	erature 4	45.95 °F
HWI2 Supply Air Humidit	v	26.30 %RH
HWI3 Return Air Tempe	Return Air Humidi	ity _{2°F}
HWI4 Return Air Humic		4 %RH
HWI5 Return Air CO2	Reliability: Under range	12 PPM
HWI6 Duct Static Pressu	ОК	24 in/wc
HWI1 Supply Fan Status	'	ing
HWI2 Return Fan Status	F	Running
		0

Figure 20: Alarm Details Screen (for LonWorks Controller)

Viewing Point Alarm Details (BACnet models)

For BACnet ECB B-AAC profile controllers only (see *Introduction to the Operator Interface*), you can view the alarm details for the associated inputs, outputs, and values in the Points menu. Select the point that is in alarm (highlighted in red) and select **Alarm Details**. See *Interpreting Row Colors and Alarm Icons*.

E Hardware Inputs		Thursday, Oct 18, 2:47:2	2013 27PM	
Al1	Supply Air Temperature		45.95 °F	
Al2	Supply Air Humidity		26.30 %RH	=
AI3	Return Air Temperature	Override	78.42 °F	
Al4	Return Air Humidity	Auto	52.64 %RH	>
AI5	Return Air CO2	Alarm Details	865.42 PPM	
Al6	Duct Static Pressure		1.1624 in/wc	٠
BI1	Supply Fan Status		Running	
BI2	Return Fan Status		Running	
				0

Figure 21: Alarm Details (for BACnet B-AAC Profile Controller)

The alarms details screen for the associated item in alarm is displayed:

Supply Air Temperature		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
From state	Normal	
Event date	Oct 15, 2012	
Event time	7:27:59AM	
To state	Normal	
Event date	Oct 15, 2012	
Event time	7:43:23AM	
New state	False	
		0

Figure 22: Alarm Details Screen (for BACnet B-AAC Profile Controller)

Schedules and Calendars Menu



The **Schedules & Calendars** menu is used to view and modify schedules (**SCH**), and calendars (**CAL**) currently available in the controller. You can also create time-of-day and special events.

When the 50 Series controller or a controller with an ECx-Display is connected to a building controller running EC-Net^{AX} and is part of a **BcpLonNetwork** or **BcpBacnetNetwork**, changes to the schedule will be synchronized with the building controller's schedules.

This menu may be greyed-out (is inaccessible) or there may be no schedules available on your controller's LCD screen. See *Feature Availability*.

Using Schedules and Calendars

Schedules are typically used to define a weekly schedule. The work week can be defined as Monday through Friday, with working hours from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Schedules also have special events that take priority over the weekly schedule. A special event can be a reference to a calendar.

Calendars on the other hand let you globally specify holidays and other special days in one place. A calendar can then be referenced in multiple schedules, allowing you to create recurring holidays only one time that will change the behavior of many schedules. This is shown below.



Figure 23: Inter-relation between Schedules and Calendars

=

A Calendar has more calendar events available than a Schedule has "special events". Using calendars increases the total number of "special events" a controller can manage. See the controller's respective Datasheet for details on amounts of Calendar and Schedule objects.

Schedule and Calendars Main Screen Overview

Schedules & Calendars			Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
SCH1	Conference RM1 O	ccupancy	Oc	cupied
SCH2	Conference RM2 C	Occupancy	Un	occupied
SCH3	Conference RM3 O	Override	-	ass
SCH4	Conference RM4 O	Auto		cupied
SCH5	Conference RM5 O	Weekly sched	ule	pccupied
SCH6	Conference RM6 O	Special events	5	ndby
SCH7	Conference RM7 O	ccupancy	Oc	l cupied
SCH8	Conference RM8 O	ccupancy	Oc	cupied
CAL1	Holiday Schedule		Τrι	IE
				0

Figure 24: Schedules and Calendars Menu

For BACnet models only, schedules can be overridden by selecting the schedule and pressing the *Jog Dial* to view the available actions. To select an action, see *Selecting an Action*.

Menu Option	Description
Override (BACnet models only)	Forces the current schedule to assume a user-set fixed value as its present value (at priority level 8).
Auto (BACnet models only)	Clears an Override value.
Weekly schedule	View and modify a weekly schedule. See <i>Viewing a Weekly Schedule</i> and <i>Modifying or Deleting a Weekly Schedule Event</i> .
Special events	View and modify a special event.

Saving Changes to Calendars and Schedules

When you modify a calendar or schedule and you exit the configuration, you have the following options.

Modified schedule		
Save schedule changes?		
Yes No Cancel		

Figure 25: Options when Exiting the Configuration

Option	Description
Yes	Accept the changes you have made to the calendar or schedule and exit the configuration.
No	Reject the changes you have made to the calendar or schedule and exit the configuration.
Cancel	Stay in the calendar and schedule menus to continue with your modifications.

Schedule Hierarchy

There are three types of schedule priority levels assigned to events, in case there is any conflict among them. The current highest-level schedule event will have precedence over any lower-priority schedule event.

Туре	Priority	Description
Special Events	1 (highest)	Special Events define a number of "Special Days" in the currently selected schedule instance. Within Special Events, the priority of Special Events is set by the order in which they are listed.
Weekly Schedule	2	Weekly schedules define regular, repeating, events by "time-of-day" and "day-of-week".
Default value	3 (lowest)	When no schedule event is active, the default value becomes active.

Schedules and Calendars Menu Tree

The following menu trees show the options available according to the type of controller.



Figure 26: Calendar and Schedule Actions for BACnet Controllers (ECB and ECY Series)



Figure 27: Calendar and Schedule Actions for a LonWorks Controller

The following actions can be taken with the Schedule and Calendars menu:

Action	See	
View a weekly schedule	Viewing a Weekly Schedule	
Modify a schedule's event	Modifying or Deleting a Weekly Schedule Event	
Delete an event from a schedule		
Set the schedule's default value (the value the calendar provides when no event is scheduled)	Creating a Weekly Schedule Event or Setting a Schedule's	
Add an event to a schedule		
Force the current schedule to assume a user-set fixed value as its present value at priority level 8 (BACnet models only)	Overriding a Schedule (BACnet models only)	
Revert the operation of a calendar or schedule operation to automatic when it has been overridden (BACnet models only)	Reverting a Schedule's Operation to Automatic (BACnet models only)	
View a special event's time-of-day events	Viewing a Weekly Schedule	
Delete a special event		
Modify a special event's time-of-day event' properties	Modifying a Special Event's Properties	
Modify a special event's time-of-day event	Modifying or Deleting a Time-of-Day Event	
Delete a special event's time-of-day event		
Add a time-of-day event to a special event	Creating a Special Event's Time-of-Day Event or Setting a Schedule's Default Value	
Select a calendar that will override this schedule (reference)	Using a Calendar as a 'Special Event Reference' in a Schedule	
Add a special event	Adding a Special Event	
Modify a calendar	Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties	
Delete a calendar event	Viewing Calendar Events	
Add a calendar event	Adding a Calendar Event	

Viewing a Weekly Schedule

Weekly schedules define regular, repeating, events by "time-of-day" and "day-of-week." At a minimum, up to three distinct events can be configured for each day. Special Events have priority over the Weekly Schedule – see *Schedule Hierarchy*. A default value is configured that will be effective when there is no active event for this calendar instance.

A schedule's configuration can be viewed for each day of the week. Once you have viewed a weekly schedule, you can optionally modify it (see *Modifying or Deleting a Weekly Schedule Event*). View a weekly schedule as follows:

- 1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any schedule in the **Schedules & Calendars** menu and activate a list of the currently available actions.
- 2. Select **Weekly Schedule** and press the *Jog Dial* to accept the selected value.

Schedule 1 Weekly schedule	Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Monday	12:00	
Tuesday	4:00	Null
Wednesday	4.00	
Thursday	8:00	
Friday	12:00	Occupied
Saturday	4:00	
Sunday	8:00	Null
	12:00	
		1

Figure 28: Schedule Weekly View

- 3. Use the *Jog Dial* to select a day of the week. A graphic representation of the schedule events for that day is shown on the right.
- 4. To view more details about the schedule events for the selected day of the week, press the *Jog Dial*.

Schedule 1 Tuesday schedule	Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
12:00AM Null*	12:00	
8:30AM Occupied	<u> </u>	Null
6:00PM Null*	9.00	
12:00AM Endof the day	6.00	Occupied
	12:00	Occupied
	4:00	
	8:00	Null
	12:00	
		0

The asterisk (*) indicates that this item is the default value: The Start and Stop times for this item cannot be edited

Figure 29: Schedule Daily Event View Details



When an item is marked with an asterisk (*), this indicates the time period during which the default value is effective: the Start and Stop times for this item cannot be edited as this is a non-event. Selecting this item allows you to add an event or to change the default value.

5. Use the *Jog Dial* to select a schedule event. The corresponding event is highlighted in the graphic on the right.

See the following procedure to modify the selected event.

Modifying or Deleting a Weekly Schedule Event

Once in a schedule's daily view details screen, you can modify or delete the selected event. See *View-ing a Weekly Schedule* for the procedure to get to this screen.

To do so, proceed as follows:

1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select a schedule event. The corresponding event is highlighted in the graphic on the right.

Schedule 1 Tuesday schedule	Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
12:00AM Null*	12:00	
8:30AM Occupied	4.00	Null
6:00PM Null*		
12:00AM End of the day	8:00	
	12:00	Occupied
	4:00	
	8:00	Null
	12:00	
		0

Press the Jog Dial to modify or delete the selected event

Figure 30: Schedule Daily Events

2. Select **Modify Event** to change the selected event's value, start, and stop time or select **Delete Event** to remove the selected event. Press the *Jog Dial* to accept your choice

Schedule 1 Tuesday sched	⊺ dule	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
12:00AM Null*	12:00	
8:30AM Occupied	4:00	Null
6:00PM Null*	4.00	
12:00AM End of the day	Modify event	
	Delete event	Occupied
	4:00	
	8:00	Null
	12:00	
		A

Figure 31: Modify or Delete the Selected Event

3. If you chose **Modify Event**, use the Jog Dial to select an event's value, start, or stop time.

Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM		Schedule 1 Event edit	
	12:00	Occupied	State
Null	4:00	8:30AM	Start
	4.00	6:00PM	Stop
	8:00		
Occupied	12:00		
	4:00		
Null	8:00		
	12:00		
1			

Figure 32: Schedule Event's Value, Start, and Stop Times

4. Use the *Jog Dial* to change the event's value, start or stop time. The event's start or stop time can be set in ten-minute increments (press and rotate the jog-dial at the same time for one-minute increments (see figure *Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size*). The graphic on the right updates accordingly.

Creating a Weekly Schedule Event or Setting a Schedule's Default Value

Once in a schedule's daily view details screen, you can:

- $\hfill\square$ Add an event to the weekly schedule for the selected day.
- □ Set the schedule's default value. The schedule's default value will be effective when there is no active event for this calendar instance. For a schedule instance, the same default value is used for both the weekly schedule and the special events.

See *Viewing a Weekly Schedule* for the procedure to get to this screen.

To do so, proceed as follows:

 Use the Jog Dial to select any default value item (marked with an asterisk (*)). See figure Schedule Daily Event View Details. To create a weekly schedule event, select a default value after which you want to create the event. Press the Jog Dial to activate a list of the currently available actions.

Schedule 1 Tuesday scl	nedule	Thu	rsday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
12:00AM Null*	12:00		
8:30AM Occupied	4.00		Null
6:00PM Null*		-	
12:00AM End of the day	Change default val	he	
	Set default to null		Occupied
	Add event		
	8:00	-	Null
	12:00		
			0

Figure 33: Schedule Event Start and Stop Times

Menu Option	Description
Change default value	Change a schedule's default value. Select the value from the list.
Set default to null	Change a schedule's default value to null.
Add event	Add a weekly schedule event after the selected default value. An event can only be added outside of currently configured events (that is, where the default value is active).

Proceed below when adding an event:

2. Select Add Event.



Figure 34: Schedule Daily Event View Details

 Use the Jog Dial to set the event's value (shown as State), start, and stop times. The event's start or stop time can be set in ten-minute increments (press and rotate the jog-dial at the same time for one-minute increments - see figure Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size). The graphic on the right updates accordingly.

Resolving Event Errors

When the maximum number of events per day has been exceeded in a Weekly Schedule, a configuration error is shown: the last event of the day turns red.

	Schedule 1 Event edit	Т	hurs	day, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
State	Bypass	12:00		
Start	2:20PM	4:00		Occupied
Stop	7:00PM	4.00		
		8:00		Nul
		12:00		Occupied
		4:00		Bypass
		8:00		Unoccupied
		12:00		

An event shown in red indicates that there are too many events configured for the current day

Figure 35: Event error: the last event of the day is shown in red

When this error is shown, reduce the number of events in that day. No more than three distinct events per day can be configured, however when adjacent events are added, it is possible to make a valid configuration with up to six adjacent events per day.

If you accept a configuration change while this error is active, the event(s) shown in red will be deleted from the current configuration.

Overriding a Schedule (BACnet models only)

A schedule's current value can be overridden (for example, for maintenance purposes, or to respond to an exceptional event on the fly). Proceed as follows:

- 1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any schedule in the **Schedules & Calendars** menu and activate a list of the currently available actions (see figure *Schedules and Calendars Menu*).
- 2. Select **Override** and press the *Jog Dial* to accept the selected value.
- 3. Set the override value. See Operator Interface.

Reverting a Schedule's Operation to Automatic (BACnet models only)

When a schedule's current value has been overridden, automatic operation can be restored as follows:

- 1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any overridden schedule in the **Schedules & Calendars** menu and activate a list of the currently available actions (see figure *Schedules and Calendars Menu*).
- 2. Select **Auto** and press the *Jog Dial* to accept the selected value. The Schedule's Operation is restored to automatic.

Viewing a Special Event

Special events define several "Special Days" in the currently selected schedule instance. Typically, you use them to define days with scheduling exceptions (for example, holidays). Special events have priority over the Weekly Schedule – see *Schedule Hierarchy*. A special Event can reference a previously configured Calendar Event.

Once a special event's configuration is viewed, you can optionally modify it or create a new one. View a special event as follows:

- 1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any schedule in the **Schedules & Calendars** menu and activate a list of the currently available actions (see figure Schedules and Calendars Menu).
- 2. Select **Special Event** and press the *Jog Dial* to accept the selected value.

Schedule 1 Special events	Schedule 1 T	
08/01/2013 – 12/29/*	12:00	
Wed., */*/*	4:00	Null
/01/	8:00	
	12:00	Unoccupied
	4:00	ſ
	8:00	Null
	12:00	
Special event properties, shown in order of priority		Time-of-day events

Figure 36: Special Event View

- 3. Use the *Jog Dial* to select a special event. The time-of-day events for this special event are shown graphically on the right.
- 4. To view the options for a special event, press the *Jog Dial*.

Schedule 1 Special ever	Thu n ts	rsday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
08/01/2013 – 12/29/*	12:00	
Wed., */*/*	4:00	Null
/01/	Time-of-day events	
	Modify special event	Unocounied
	Delete	Unoccupied
	Add before	
	Add after	Null
	12:00	
		0

Figure 37: Special Events Daily Menu Options

Menu Option	Description	See
Time-of-day events	For the selected special event, create a time-of-day event or set the current schedule's default value.	Creating a Special Event's Time-of-Day Event or Setting a Schedule's Default Value
	For the selected special event, modify or delete a time-of-day event.	Modifying or Deleting a Time-of-Day Event
Modify special event	Configure the selected special event's properties (shown as the date range on the left).	Modifying a Special Event's Properties
Delete	Delete the selected special event.	-
Add before	Add a new special event before the selected special event (at a higher priority than the selected special event).	Adding a Special Funct
Add after	Add a new special event after the selected special event (at a lower priority than the selected special event).	Aaaung a special event

Modifying a Special Event's Properties

Once in a schedule's special events details screen, you can modify a special event's properties. See *Viewing a Special Event* for the procedure to get to this screen. To modify a special event's properties, proceed as follows:

1. The screen displays the special event's type, start date, and, if available, stop date. Use the *Jog Dial* to select the special event's **Type**.

Sc Sp	chedule 1 Decial even	ר ts	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Туре	1	Date ra	nge
Start Date		*/01/*	
Stop Date		12/31/*	
		Date	
		Date range	
		Week and day	
		Reference	
			la la
Sp	becial event typ	e	Date parameters

Figure 38: Setting the Special Event's Type

2. Use the Jog Dial to change the special event's properties.

Special Event Type	Description		
	Selects a day or a series of weekdays, dates, months or years.		
	Date		
Date	Day: Every day Month: Every month Day of month: 1 year: Every year Edit OK Cancel		
	Selects a range of days.		
	Date range		
	Month: January Day of month: 1 year: Every year Edit OK		
Date range	Date range		
	Month:JanuaryDay of month:3year:Every yearEditOKCancel		
	For example, the above setting selects the first three days of every year as a Special Event.		
	Selects a series of weekdays, week in a calendar month, or months.		
	Week and day		
Week and day	Day: Monday Week: 1st Month: Every month Edit OK Cancel		
Reference	Select a Calendar that will be used as a 'special event reference' in this Schedule. For more		
	information, see Using a Calendar as a 'Special Event Reference' in a Schedule.		

Special Selection Options

The number of days in a calendar month varies according to the month, and for February, according to whether it is a leap year. Due to this, there is the option in **Day** to select the last day of the month, which automatically selects the last day of the month, regardless of the month.

Also, for Month, there is the option to select all even months (February, April, June, August, October, December), or to select all odd months (January, March, May, July, September, and November).

Using a Calendar as a 'Special Event Reference' in a Schedule

A calendar is linked to a schedule so that the calendar can override the weekly schedule. See *Using Schedules and Calendars*. To view a calendar's events, see *Viewing Calendar Events*. Proceed as follows:

- 1. In the schedule's Special Event's Properties, select **Reference**. See *Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties*.
- 2. Link the schedule to a calendar by selecting a calendar from the list.

Schedule 1 Special events		Thu	rsday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Туре		Reference	
Calendar reference		Calendar 1	
	Calendar 1 Calendar 2		
			A

Figure 39: Selecting a Calendar that will override a Schedule

3. Modify the calendar event(s) or add a calendar event if necessary. See *Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties* and *Adding a Calendar Event*.

Modifying or Deleting a Time-of-Day Event

Once in a schedule's Special Event time-of-day details screen, you can modify or delete the selected time-of-day event. See *Viewing a Special Event* for the procedure to get to this screen. To do so, proceed as follows:

1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select the time-of-day details event to modify or delete in the schedule's daily view details screen.

Schedule 1 */01/*	Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
12:00AM Null*	12:00	
8:30AM Occupied	4.00	Null
6:00PM Null*		
12:00AM End of the day	8:00	
	12:00	Occupied
	4:00	
	8:00	Null
	12:00	
		n a
L		1

Press the Jog Dial to modify or delete the selected time-of-day event

Figure 40: Time-of-day events

2. Select **Modify event** to change the selected time-of-day event's value, start, and stop time or select **Delete event** to remove the selected time-of-day event. Press the *Jog Dial* to accept your choice.

Schedule 1 */01/*	Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
12:00AM Null*	12:00	
8:30AM Occupied	4:00	Null
6:00PM Null*	4.00	
12:00AM End of the day	Modify event	Occupied
	Delete event	Occupied
	4:00	
	8:00	Null
	12:00	,
		A

Figure 41: Modify or Delete the Selected Time-of-day Event

3. If you chose **Modify event**, use the *Jog Dial* to select a time-of-day event's value, start, or stop time.

Schedule 1 */01/*		Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
State	Occupied	12:00	
Start	8:30AM	4:00	Null
Stop	6:00PM	4.00	
		8:00	
		12:00	Occupied
		4:00	
		8:00	Null
		12:00	
			Û

Figure 42: Time-of-day Event's Value, Start, and Stop Times

4. Use the *Jog Dial* to change the time-of-day event's value, start or stop time. The time-of-day event's start or stop time can be set in ten-minute increments (press and rotate the jog-dial at the same time for one-minute increments – see figure *Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size*). The graphic on the right updates accordingly.

Creating a Special Event's Time-of-Day Event or Setting a Schedule's

Default Value

Once in a schedule's Special Event Time-of-Day details screen, you can:

- □ Add a time-of-day event to the special event.
- □ Set the schedule's default value. The schedule's default value will be effective when there is no active event for this calendar instance. For a schedule instance, the same default value is used for both the weekly schedule and for the special events.

See *Viewing a Special Event* for the procedure to get to this screen. To do so, proceed as follows:

1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any default value item (marked with an asterisk (*)). To create a weekly schedule event, select a default value after which you want to create the event. Press the *Jog Dial* to activate a list of the currently available actions.

Schedule 1 Tuesday sch	nedule	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM	
12:00AM Null*	12:00		
8:30AM Occupied	4:00		Null
6:00PM Null*			
12:00AM End of the day	Change default value		
	Set default to null		Occupied
	Add event		
	8:00		Null
	12:00		
			0

Figure 43: Schedule Event Start and Stop Times

Menu Option	Description
Change default value	Change a schedule's default value. Select the value from the list.
Set default to null	Change a schedule's default value to null.
Add event	Add a time-of-day event after the selected default value. A time-of-day can only be added outside of currently configured time-of-day events (that is, where the default value is active).

Proceed below when adding a time-of-day event:

2. Select Add event.

Schedule 1 */01/*			Т	hursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
State	Occupied		12:00	
Start	6:00PM	1	4.00	Null
Stop	12:00AM	.		
			8:00	
			12:00	Occupied
			4:00	
			8:00	Null
			12:00	
				0
Set the day eve	e time-of- Sel ent's value	the time-of-da start and stor	ay event's p time	6

Figure 44: Schedule Daily Event View Details

Use the Jog Dial to set the event's value (shown as State), start, and stop times. The event's start or stop time can be set in ten-minute increments (press and rotate the jog-dial at the same time for one-minute increments – see figure Press and Rotate the Jog Dial at the Same Time to Set the Scroll Step Size). The graphic on the right updates accordingly.

Adding a Special Event

Once in a schedule's Special Event Time-of-day details screen (See Viewing a Special Event), you can:

- □ Add a new special event before the selected special event (at a higher priority than the selected special event). To do so, select **Add before** from the menu.
- Add a new special event after the selected special event (at a lower priority than the selected special event). To do so, select **Add after** from the menu.

To do so, proceed as follows:

1. In the special events daily menu options (see *Viewing a Special Event*), select Add before or Add after.

Schedule 1 Special even	Thເ າ ts	ursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
08/01/2013 – 12/29/*	12:00	
Wed., */*/*	4:00	Null
/01/	Time-of-day events	
	Modify special event	Unanguniad
	Delete	Unoccupied
	Add before	
	Add after	Null
	12:00	
		1

Figure 45: Select Add before or Add after

2. Use the *Jog Dial* to select the special event's **Type**. See *Modifying a Special Event's Properties* for more information about the **Type** parameter.



Figure 46: Setting the Special Event's Type

- 3. Use the Jog Dial to set the special event's start date, and if available, the stop date.
- 4. Use the *Jog Dial* to set the special event's time-of-day events. See *Modifying or Deleting a Time-of-day Event*.

Viewing Calendar Events

Calendar events define a number of "special event days" in the currently selected calendar instance. Typically, you use them to define days with scheduling exceptions (for example, holidays), and reference them in a schedule's **Reference** configuration. Calendars are shown in their order of priority. To view a calendar event, proceed as follows:

- 1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any calendar instance in the **Schedules & Calendars** menu. See figure Schedules and Calendars Menu.
- 2. Select a calendar event from the list and press the *Jog Dial* to view the available options.

Calendar 1	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
01/01/*	
1st Week, Every month	
10/08/2013 - 10/18/2013	Modify
01/01/2012 – 12/31/2016	Delete
	Add before
	Add after



Figure 47: Calendar Event View

Menu Option	Description	See
Modify	Configure the selected calendar event's properties.	Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties
Delete	Delete the selected calendar event.	-
Add before	Add a new calendar event before the selected calendar event (at a higher priority than the selected calendar event).	Adding a Calendar Frank
Add after	Add a new calendar event after the selected calendar event (at a lower priority than the selected calendar event).	Adding a Calendar Event

Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties

Once in a calendar's details screen, you can modify the selected calendar event. See *Viewing Calendar Events* for the procedure to get to this screen. To do so, proceed as follows:

1. The screen displays the calendar's type, start date, and, if available, stop date. Use the *Jog Dial* to select the calendar event's **Type**.





2. Use the *Jog Dial* to change the calendar's properties.

Special Event Type	Description
	Selects a day or a series of weekdays, dates, or months.
	Date
Date	Day: Every day Month: Every month Day of month: 1 year: Every year Edit OK Cancel
	Selects a range of days.
Date range	Date range Month: January Day of month: 3 year: Every year Edit OK Cancel Date range Month: January Day of month: 1 year: Every year Edit OK Cancel Edit
	For example, the above setting selects the first three days of every year as an event.
	Selects a series of weekdays, week in a calendar month, or months.
Week and day	VVeek and day Day: Monday Week: 1st Month: Every month Edit OK Cancel

Adding a Calendar Event

Once in a calendar's details screen (see Viewing Calendar Events), you can:

- □ Add a new calendar event before the selected calendar event (at a higher priority than the selected calendar event). To do so, select **Add before** from the menu.
- Add a new calendar event after the selected calendar event (at a lower priority than the selected calendar event). To do so, select **Add after** from the menu.

To do so, proceed as follows:

1. In the calendar menu options (see *Viewing Calendar Events*), select Add before or Add after.

Ca	alendar 1		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
01/01/*			
1st Week,	Every month		
10/08/2013	3 – 10/18/2013	Modify	
01/01/2012	2 – 12/31/2016	Delete	
		Add before	
		Add after	

Calendar Parameters



2. Use the *Jog Dial* to select the special event's **Type**. See *Modifying a Calendar Event's Properties* for more information about the **Type** parameter.

Calendar 1 Calendar entry		Thui t ry	rsday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Туре	n	Date range	
Start Date		*/01/*	
Stop Date		12/31/*	
		Date	
		Date range	
		Week and day	
			6
Ca	lendar type	Date	parameters

Figure 50: Setting the Calendar Event's Type

3. Use the *Jog Dial* to set the calendar event's start date, and if available, the stop date.

Alarm Menu (LonWorks)



The alarm menu shows the active alarms, displayed by priority. For LONWORKS ECL controllers, alarms are triggered when the reliability of a point is other than **No fault detected (0)**. See *Reliability Property*. Points only include those that can be viewed in the *Points Menu* and also have a **Reliability** output port in EC-*gfx*Program such as **PID Loop, Hardware Input, Hardware Output, ComSensor, Wireless Sensor,** and **Schedule**.

This menu may be greyed-out (that is inaccessible) on your controller's LCD screen: see *Feature Availability*.

From this screen, you can view the list of active alarms:

	Alarms	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
HWI1	Supply_AirTemp	Open circuit
HWI2	Return_AirTemp	Open circuit
HWI3	Return_AirHumid	Under range
HWI4	Supply_StaticPres	Short circuit
WRI1	FanSpeed	Com. failure
COM1	SpaceTemp	Com. failure
		0

Figure 51: LonWorks Alarms Menu

Reliability Property

The reliability property is an enumeration that provides an indication of whether the current value or the operation of the physical input in question is reliable as far as the controller can determine and, if not, why. The reliability property supports the following enumeration values:

Enumeration	Description
NO_FAULT_DETECTED	The Present Value is reliable, as no other fault (enumerated below) has been detected.
NO_SENSOR	No sensor is connected to the Input object.
OVER_RANGE	The sensor connected to the Input is reading a value higher than the normal operating range as configured by the controller's programming.
UNDER_RANGE	The sensor connected to the Input is reading a value lower than the normal operating range as configured by the controller's programming.
OPEN_LOOP	The connection between the defined object and the physical device is providing a value indicating an open circuit condition.
SHORTED_LOOP	The connection between the defined object and the physical device is providing a value indicating a short circuit condition.
PROCESS_ERROR	A processing error was encountered.
MULTI_STATE_FAULT	The Present_Value of the Multi-state object is equal to one of the states in the Fault_Values property and no other fault has been detected.
	This fault may be sent by some controller models.
CONFIGURATION_ERROR	The object's properties are not in a consistent state.
COMMUNICATION_FAILURE	Proper operation of the object is dependent on communication with a remote sensor or device and communication with the remote sensor or device has been lost.
UNRELIABLE_OTHER	The controller has detected that the Present_Value is unreliable, but none of the other conditions describe the nature of the problem. A generic fault other than those listed above has been detected, for example, a Digital Input is not cycling as expected, or a schedule is empty (it has not yet been configured).

Alarm Menu (BACnet)



The alarm menu shows the active alarms, displayed by priority.

- □ For BACnet ECB B-ASC profile controllers (see *Introduction to the Operator Interface*), no alarms are supported. This feature is not available on these controllers.
- □ For BACnet ECB B-AAC profile controllers (see *Introduction to the Operator Interface*), points must have their alarms previously configured in the code downloaded into the controller for alarms to be active. Alarms are triggered when the reliability of a point is other than **No fault detected (0)**. See *Reliability Property*. Points include any EC-*gfx*Program block that has a **Reliability** output port such as **Analog Hardware Input**, **Binary Hardware Input**, **Multi State Input**, **Analog Value**, **Binary Value**, **Multi State Value**, **Analog Hardware Output**, **Binary Hardware Output**, **Binary Hardware Output**, **ComSensor**, and **Wireless Sensor**. Alarms can also be acknowledged.

This menu may be greyed-out (that is inaccessible) on your controller's LCD screen: see *Feature Availability*.

🔖 Alarms	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Active not acknowledged	5
Active acknowldged	15
Inactive not acknowledged	7

Figure 52: BACnet B-AAC Alarms Menu

Select the type of alarm you want to view.

Туре	Description	
Active unacknowledged	Alarms that are currently active and are unacknowledged.	
Active acknowledged	Alarms that are currently active and have been acknowledged.	
Inactive unacknowledged	Alarms that were active but are currently inactive (has returned to normal) and are unacknowledged.	

The alarm list is shown below as an example of the Active acknowledged alarm type.

	Active acknowledged	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
BV1	Fan Stutus	Off normal
Al4	Actual Flow	Low Limit
AV4	Duct Discharge Temp	High Limit
MSV3	Heat 1 Control	False
AO6	Heat Stage 1	High Limit
AV3	Perim Heat Load	High Limit
BI2	Fan Status	False
MSV6	Occupancy	Occupied
BO7	Fan Start	Fan Stop
		î
Point Identifier	Point Name	Alarm State

Figure 53: BACnet B-AAC Active Unacknowledged Alarm List

Viewing the Alarm Details Screen

From this screen, you can view the alarm details as follows:

1. Use the Jog Dial to select an alarm and go to the alarm detailed information screen.

Supply Air Temperature		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
From state	Normal	
Event date	Oct 15, 2012	
Event time	7:27:59AM	
To state	Normal	
Event date	Oct 15, 2012	
Event time	7:43:23AM	
New state	False	

Figure 54: Typical Alarm Detailed Information Screen

Туре	Description	
From state	The point's alarm status prior to the alarm event.	
To state	The point's alarm status at the moment of the alarm event.	
New state	The point's current alarm status.	
Event date	The date the event occurred.	
Event time	The time the event occurred.	
Exceeded limit	The alarm event threshold.	
Exceeding value	The alarm event value.	
Feedback	The value at the corresponding block's Feedback input. When this value is different from the corresponding block's present value, this triggers an alarm.	
Reliability	This is the alarm point's reliability property, if available. See <i>Reliability Property</i> .	

2. Press **EXIT** to return to the previous menu.

Acknowledging an Unacknowledged Alarm

For BACnet B-AAC Profile Controllers, **Active unacknowledged** and **Inactive unacknowledged** alarms can be acknowledged in the **Alarm Detailed Information** screen (*Typical Alarm Detailed Information Screen*) as follows:

1. Use the *Jog Dial* to select any item in the Alarm Detailed Information screen (see figure below) and activate a list of the currently available actions.

Supply A	ir Temperature	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
From state	Normal	
Event date	Oct 15, 2012	
Event time	7:27:59AM	
To state	No <mark> Acknowledg</mark>	e
Event date	^{Ос} Cancel	
Event time	7:43:23AM	
New state	False	

Figure 55: Typical Alarm Detailed Information Screen

2. Select Acknowledge and press the Jog Dial to accept the selected value.

Reliability Property

The reliability property is an enumeration that provides an indication of whether the current value or the operation of the physical input in question is reliable as far as the controller can determine and, if not, why. The reliability property supports the following enumeration values:

Enumeration	Description
NO_FAULT_DETECTED	The Present Value is reliable, as no other fault (enumerated below) has been detected.
NO_SENSOR	No sensor is connected to the Input object.
OVER_RANGE	The sensor connected to the Input is reading a value higher than the normal operating range as configured by the controller's programming.
UNDER_RANGE	The sensor connected to the Input is reading a value lower than the normal operating range as configured by the controller's programming.
OPEN_LOOP	The connection between the defined object and the physical device is providing a value indicating an open circuit condition.
SHORTED_LOOP	The connection between the defined object and the physical device is providing a value indicating a short circuit condition.
PROCESS_ERROR	A processing error was encountered.
MULTI_STATE_FAULT	The Present_Value of the Multi-state object is equal to one of the states in the Fault_Values property and no other fault has been detected. This fault may be sent by some controller models.
CONFIGURATION_ERROR	The object's properties are not in a consistent state.
COMMUNICATION_FAILURE	Proper operation of the object is dependent on communication with a remote sensor or device and communication with the remote sensor or device has been lost.
UNRELIABLE_OTHER	The controller has detected that the Present_Value is unreliable, but none of the other conditions describe the nature of the problem. A generic fault other than those listed above has been detected, for example, a Digital Input is not cycling as expected, or a schedule is empty (it has not yet been configured).

Overrides Menu

If any points are in override, the **Overrides** menu will allow a user to view the override value of any **Hardware Input**, **Hardware Output**, **Value**, **Constant**, or **Variable** that has been overridden and to change or remove an override. From this screen, you can view the list of overrides:

٥ ک	Overrides	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
BI8:	Return Fan Status	Running
Al2	Supply Air Humidity	26.30 %RH
AI5	Return Air CO2	865.42 PPM
BI7	Supply Fan Status	Running
Al6	Duct Static Pressure	1.1624 in/wc
Al2	Supply Air Humidity	26.30 %RH
BI9	Filter Status	Clean

Figure 56: Overrides Menu Showing the Override Value of each Overridden Point

□ A maximum of 50 points can be viewed in this screen at any time. ECLYPSE Connected Controllers may have a 'next page' menu option if there are more than 50 points available.

The following objects are available according to the controller's network type:

LonWorks Controllers		BACnet Controllers	
Ir	nputs/Outputs:	Inputs/	Outputs:
HWI	Hardware Input	AI	Analog Hardware Input
HWO	Hardware Output	BI	Binary Hardware Input
COM	ComSensor Input	AO	Analog Hardware Output
WRI	Wireless Sensor Input	во	Binary Hardware Output
NVI	Network Variable Input	MSI	Multi-State Input
NVO	Network Variable Output		
	Constants:	Val	ues:
NC	AV	AV	Analog Value
BC	BV	BV	Binary Value
EC	MSV	MSV	Multi-State Value
SC	Setpoint Constant		
Values:			
NV	Numeric Value		
BV	Boolean Value		
EV	Enumeration Value		

Modifying an Overridden Point or Removing an Override

An overridden point can be modified, or the override can be removed by selecting the point and pressing the *Jog Dial* to view the available actions. To select an action, see *Selecting an Action*.

٥×	Overrides		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
BI8:	Return Fan Status	Running	
AI2	Supply Air Humidity	26.30 %RH	
AI5	Return Air CO2	865.42 PPM	
BI7	Supply Fan Status	Override	
Al6	Duct Static Pressure	Auto	
AI2	Supply Air Humidity	26.30 %RH	
BI9	Filter Status	Clean	

Figure 57: Changing a Point's Override Setting

The following override options may be available according to the type of point selected:

Override	LONWORKS Controller	BACnet Controller	Description
Emergency Override			Forces a point to assume a user-set value at priority level 1.
Emergency Auto			Clears an Emergency Override value at priority level 1.
Override			Forces the point to assume a user-set value as its present value (at priority level 8 for BACnet controllers).
Auto			Clears an Override value.
Alarm details			Shows any currently associated alarms. See Viewing Point Alarm Details (LonWORKS models) or Viewing Point Alarm Details (BACnet models).

Favorites Menu



The favorites menu allows the user to view the controller's favorites that have been bookmarked in EC-*gfx*Program through the **Resources Viewer** pane.

This menu may be greyed-out (that is inaccessible) on your operator interface screen when there are no favorites previously configured through EC-*gfx*Program for this controller. See *Feature Availability*. The following screen shows the list of grouped favorites:



Figure 58: Favorites Menu Groups that have been Configured in EC-gfxProgram

Select a favorites group from the **Favorites** menu to view the details:

	AHU-01	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
AI3	Supply Air Temperature	56.3°F
Al4	Return Air Temperature	76.9°F
AI5	Mixed Air Temperature	43.5°F
BI8	Supply Fan Status	Running
B19	Filter Status	Clean
		1

Figure 59: Selecting a Favorite

Important: The ECx-Display and x50 series Favorites Menu configuration defined in EC-*gfx*Program will not correctly display the list of favorited points on the displays if using more than 256 points of a single object type (Analog, Binary, or Multistate value). Beyond the 256th point, the following point's description (e.g. the 257th point) will revert to the first point's description on the ECx-Display or x50 Series displays. Keep this limitation in mind as multiple favorites are being defined in EC-*gfx*Program.

=

PID Loops Menu



The PID Loops menu allows the user to view, configure, and tune the controller's PID loop parameters, as well as to see a graph of the PID loop's performance.

The PID loop setpoint can also be temporarily overridden to help a system integrator to locally tune a PID loop. Once you have found the optimum PID loop values, the values can be applied to the controller's project code in EC-*gfx*Program. See *Uploading the PID Loop Values to the Controller's Code in EC-gfxProgram*.

This menu may be greyed-out (that is inaccessible) on your operator interface screen when there are no PID loops previously configured through EC-*gfx*Program for this controller. See *Feature Availability*.



In EC-*gfx*Program, PID loop values that are overridden from the operator interface are not shown during debugging.

	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
PID1 Supply Air Temperature	89.1 %
PID2 Supply Air Humidity	70.3 %
PID3 Supply Duct Static Air Pressure	33.9 %
PID4 Fresh Air Makeup IAQ	22.5 %

Figure 60: PID Loops Menu

Use the *Jog Dial* to select a PID loop and view its details. The response of the PID loop is shown as a graph:



Figure 61: Typical PID Configuration Screen

The Input, Setpoint, and Output values are color-coded to correspond to the color of the lines shown in the graph.

Depending on how the PID loop was programmed in the controller, you may not be able to modify some PID loop parameters. For example, in the controller's code, if the PID loop's proportional band input is linked to an object, you will not be able to change the proportional band value through the LCD screen. The PID loop parameters are described as follows:

Parameter	Description		
Input	The measured input (view only).		
Setpoint	The PID loop setpoint.		
Output	The PID loop output (for BACnet controllers, this value can be overridden).		
Prop. Band	The proportional band is the error value that is necessary to span the extent of the output range, to move the output from 0 to 100%. The proportional gain is the instantaneous effect of the error on the output. The proportional gain and proportional band have the following relationship: proportional gain = 100/(proportional band). For example, If the proportional band is set to 2°F, then a 2°F error (deviation from the setpoint) will result in 100% output. The proportional band is sometimes referred to as a "throttling range" or "modulating range".		
Integral Time	The integral time is a factor of the effect of the error (deviation from setpoint) over time. The integral time determines how quickly the system responds to a given error.		
Derivative Time	The derivative time determines the effect of the derivative action on the system response. The derivative time is sometimes referred to as "rate time".		
Dead band	The dead band is a range (centered on the setpoint) in which no corrective action is taken, that is, the output of the PID loop remains the same. For example, the graph below shows the effect of a 2°F dead band on a PID loop that has a proportional band of 4°F. The setpoint is 72°F. The dead band is 2°F centered on the setpoint and thus the output of the PID loop does not change when the input is between 71 and 73°F. No matter how the PID loop is configured (change to proportional, integral, derivative control, or bias represented by the dashed lines), the dead band remains centered on the setpoint. Effect of 2°C Dead Band on PID: $\binom{9}{100}$ $\binom{100}{75}$ $\binom{9}{100}$		
Bias	The bias is the default percentage of output when there is no error (setpoint = Input). It is a constant value that is applied to the control loop to correct offsets. For example, the graph below shows the effect of a 50% bias on a PID loop that has a proportional band of 4°F. The setpoint is 72°F. The bias is 50% and thus the total output of the PID loop is increased by 50% so that previously a 72°F input temperature resulted in an output of 0% and now results in an output of 50%. 0% Bias on PID:		



Tuning a PID Loop

To tune a PID loop, you need to subject the system to a change by modifying the setpoint to observe the system's response. For a detailed procedure on how to tune a PID Loop, refer the <u>EC-gfxProgram</u> <u>User Guide</u>.



Depending on the screen's current logout time, you may not have enough time to view the graph's response time. If so, increase the screen's log out time in the *Settings Menu*.

- 1. In the PID configuration screen, use the *Jog Dial* to select and modify the **Setpoint** to a new value. See *Selecting and Editing a Numeric Value*.
- 2. Refer to the PID response graph to see how it will react to the new setpoint.



Figure 62: Typical PID Configuration Screen

- 3. Configure the rest of the PID loop parameters as needed.
- 4. Repeat these steps until the PID loop is adequately tuned.
 - □ A setpoint override lasts only as long as you stay in the PID screens. Upon leaving the PID loops screens, the overridden setpoint will revert to automatic operation.
 - □ Once you have found the optimum PID loop values, the values can be applied to the controller's project code in EC-*gfx*Program. See *Uploading the PID Loop Values to the Controller's Code in EC-gfxProgram*.

Uploading the PID Loop Values to the Controller's Code in EC-gfxProgram

The PID loop values can be uploaded to the controller's project in EC-*gfx*Program. To do so, once you have found the optimum PID loop values, open the controller's project in EC-*gfx*Program (the controller must be online), in the **Home** toolbar, select **Synchronize**, and upload the values from the device with the settings shown in the image below.

Synchronizatio Select the compor	n Ients you want to synchronize
Selection Progress Results	Synchronization Mode Download to device Upload from device Download to multiple devices Upload from multiple devices
Finish	Synchronization Options Configuration properties Update non-controller specific values and constants Update controller specific values and constants Compile code and send it to device

Figure 63: Uploading the Controller's PID Loop Configuration Values

Weather Menu



The weather menu allows the user to view the current weather conditions. The units can be set to either Metric or US Units in EC-*gfx*Program.

This menu may be greyed-out (that is inaccessible) on your controller's LCD screen when the weather menu feature has not been configured. Refer to the <u>EC-gfxProgram User Guide</u> for more information on how to make weather information available on a controller. See also *Feature Availability*.

🖄 Weather		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Sun with clouds 67.8°F 56°F/72°F	Sunrise	7:06AM
	Sunset	6:15PM
	Humidity	89.1 %
	Wind speed	12 mph SE
	Wind gust	22 mph
	Wind chill	61.10°F
	Pressure	30.3 inHg
	Dew Point	41.2°F
Last Update: Oct 18, 2012 2:27PM		0

Figure 64: Weather Menu

Settings Menu



The settings menu allows the user to view and configure the controller's settings such as the time, MAC address (if applicable), device ID (if applicable), etc.

🔅 Settings	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Brightness	50%
Language	English
Logout Time	3 min
Device Instance	821006
MAC Address	6
Max Master	27
Baud Rate	Auto
Date	Thursday, Oct 18, 2012
Time	2:47:27PM

Figure 65: Typical Settings Menu

Settings	Description	
Brightness	Sets the display's luminosity.	
Language	Set the current user interface language. The user interface natively supports French and English. A third language can be loaded into the user interface through EC- <i>gfx</i> Program in the LCD Screen block.	
Log out time	Sets the delay of user inactivity after which the interface goes to the main screen. If a user interface has password-protection enabled, it also becomes password-protected (locked). When set to 0, the auto-logout feature is disabled. See also <i>Unlocking a Password Protected Interface</i> .	
Device instance		
(BACnet models only)	Set the controller's current device ID number.	
MAC address	When the MAC DIP switches on the controller's faceplate are all set to off (all switches are	
(BACnet models only)	to the left), this allows you to set the controller's MAC address through the operator interface.	
Max master (maximum MAC Address)	The highest MAC Address number of any Master device connected to the BACnet MS/TP data bus. Max Master optimizes the efficiency of the token-passing data bus by ensuring that no attempt will be made to pass the token to inexistent devices above the highest	
(BACnet models only)	Master device MAC Address on the connected BACnet MS/TP data bus.	
Baud rate	Sate the controller's Boud rate for the BAC not MS/TP network	
(BACnet models only)		
Date	 The current date. Depending on how this controller has been programmed and configured: Setting the time and date may set the time and date for other controllers on the network. When an EC-NetAX building controller is available on the network, it will normally be used to set the time and date for all controllers on the network. In this case, the time and date set here may be overwritten periodically by the EC-NetAX building controller's time and date. 	
Time	The current time. See Date above.	
Time zone	The current controller's time zone.	
(BACnet models only)		
DST enable	Enable / disable daylight savings time	
DST start date	When daylight savings time is enabled, set the date of the year when daylight savings time starts.	
DST start time	When daylight savings time is enabled, set the time of day the daylight savings time starts.	
DST stop date	When daylight savings time is enabled, set the date of the year when daylight savings time ends.	
DST stop date	When daylight savings time is enabled, set the time of day the daylight savings time ends.	
DST Offset	When daylight savings time is enabled, set the amount of daylight savings time by which the controller's clock will be advanced	

About Menu



The **About** menu can be customized to show the user a graphic (for example, a company logo) and textual information (for example, the integrator's contact information). This screen is configured through EC-*gfx*Program in the **LCD Screen** block when the controller is programmed.

About	Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
	ACME HVAC Control Integrators Inc.
	123 Street Name
	City, State
	Country
	(123) 456-7890
	www.acmehvaccontrol.com
Press the jog dial for versions	

Figure 66: About Menu Example

Press the Jog Dial to view the controller's and operator interface's firmware and bootloader versions.

1 Versions		Thursday, Oct 18, 2013 2:47:27PM
Controller:		
Firmware:	3.5.13297.1	
Bootloader:	2.2.12041.1	
Operator interfac	e:	
Firmware:	1.1.13295.1	
Bootloader:	1.0.13057.1	

Figure 67: Firmware Versions

